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In the Matter of

Joe Walsh for Congress Committee,
Inc., and Helene M. Miller-Walsh, in
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her official capacity as treasurer; Joe MUR 6292
Walsh; Bryan Javor; Bruce Donnelly;
Christopher Geissler

CERTIFICATION

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission
executive session on December 01, 2010, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a
vote of 6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 6292:

1. Dismiss as a matter of prosecutorial discretion and issue a letter of
caution to Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc., and Helene
Miller-Walsh in her official capacity as treasurer, in connection with
violations of 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5.

2. Dismiss as a matter of prosecutorial discretion and issue a letter of
caution to Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc., and Helene
Miller-Walsh in her official capacity as treasurer, in connection with a

violation of 2 U.S.C. § 433(a).

3. Find no reason to believe that Bryan Javor violated
2US.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).

. 4. Find no reason to believe that Christopher Geissler violated
2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).

5. Find no reason to believe that Bruce Donnelly violated
2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).

6. Find no reason to believe that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee,
Inc., and Helene Miller-Walsh in her official capacity as treasurer
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violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) in connection with in-kind contributions
from Bruce Donnelly.

7. Find no reason to believe that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee
Inc., and Helene Miller-Walsh in her official capacity as treasurer
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441f and 441a(f).

8. Find no reason to believe that Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f,

9. Approve the Factual and Legal Analyses, as recommended in the
First General Counsel’s Report dated October 25, 2010, subject to the changes
previously circulated in the Factual and Legal Analysis for the Joe Walsh for
Congress Committee, Ino., and Helene Miller-Walsh in her official capacity as
treasurer.

10. Approve the appropriate letters.

11. Close the file.

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, Walther and Weintraub voted

affirmatively for the decision.

d)wné(m/ g, 30 ﬂ%@?ﬁa 1/)/4%/

Secretary and Clerk of the Comm1ssmn
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

Mr. Bruce Donnelly DEC'1 o 2010

|
Lake Barrington, IL. 60010

RE: MUR 6292

Dear Mr. Donnelly:

On May 20, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified you of a complaint alleging
violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. On
December 1, 2010, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the complaint,
information provided by you, and inforncation provided by others, thers is no reason to believe
you vialated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). Acaordingly, tae Comthissinn closed its file in this
matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 20 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). The Factual and
Legal Analysis, which explains the Commission’s finding, is enclosed for your information.

H you have any quescdons, please contact Dawn M. Odrowski, the anorney assigned to
this matter at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

-

y Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENT: Bruce Donnelly MUR: 6292

I. INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by
Richard M. Cape, alloging that Bruce Donnelly violated the Federal Election Campzign Aet of
1971, as amended (“the Act™).

II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Background

The complaint alleges that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC") gave phone.
data to Bryan Javor to assist him in conducting numerous automated phone calls paid for by
Bruce Donnelly to increase Joe Walsh’s name recognition and help get out the vote for him, and
JWCKC failed to report the expenditures for these calls as an in-kind contribution from Donnelly.
If the allegation is true and the phone calls cost in excess of the $2,400 per-election contribution
limit, Mr. Dommelly may have made an excessive in-kind contribution. The compiaint does not
provlde a time frame far these anto-calls, anc¢ ntme of the documents provided shed further light
on this allegation. Aecording to Rruce Donnelly, these phone cails took place after the primary
election. Bruce Donnelly Response at 1.

Donnelly acknowledges that he used Bryan Javor’s marketing services in March, April,
and May 2010 to make a limited number of local auto-calls, and that complainant, while
employed by JWCC, provided Javor with some of the phone data for the calls. Donnelly
Response at 1-2. Donnelly states that the auto-calls were made to promote attendance at free,

open meetings of a new local group of independent voters that encourages voters to become
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MUR 6292 (Bruce Donnelly) 2
Factual and Legal Analysis

better informed about issues. /d. Some of the calls mentioned that Walsh was among the invited
speakers at the meetings, but Donnelly maintains that the auto-calls did not solicit funds for
Walsh or the group, and the meetings were not fundraisers for Walsh. /d. Donnelly concludes
that none of his personal spending with respect to the auto-calls should be attributed to JWCC as
an in-kind contribution as he independently selected who to call based on his own criteria for
marketing the group, and JWCC excrcised no contral over the content of the calls, the group’s
meeilng agenda, or his use of Javor, whose servicas he uecd becausc it was one af the cheapest
options to promote the group. Id. Even if his spanding were deemed ta be au in-kind
contribution, Donnelly maintains the value would have been within his contribution limit for the
general election. Id. JWCC’s reports confirm that Donnelly had made only one $1,500 primary
election contribution as of the date he filed his response on June 7, 2010.

JWCC relies on statements in Mr. Donnelly’s response. JWCC suggests that
Mr. Donnelly’s activities did not constitute coordinated communications, and thus an in-kind
contribution, as Donnelly has stated that he did not coordinate the timing or content of auto-calls
with the JWCC or its agent and the purpose of the calls was not to advocate for Joe Walsh's
election.”’ Nonetheless, JWCC determined that the value of the phone data it supplied to Javor
was $70 and stated that it wauld disclose it as an-kind contribution to Donnelly’s erganizstion in
its 2010 July Quarterly Report.

JWCC has since reported an-kind contribution of $70 to Bruce Donnelly in its amended

2010 April Quarterly Report rather than its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably signifying

! Commission regulations provide that a commenication is eonsidered coordinated with a candidate, and tlius, an in-
kind contribution to the candidate’s political committee, if it is paid for by a person other than a candidate and meets
certain content and conduct standards. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(a). A communication satisfies the content

standards if, for example, it is a public communication that expressly advocates the election or defeat of a clearly
identified candidate. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(c)(3). A communication satisfies the conduct standard if, for example,
a candidate or a political committee is materially involved in decisions regarding the content, intended audience, or
frequency or timing of the communication. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(d)(2).
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MUR 6292 (Bruce Donnelly) 3
Factual and Legal Analysis

that the phone data was provided to Javor before March 31, 2010. In addition, in its 2010 July
Quarterly Report, JWCC reported six in-kind general election contributions, totaling $1,702,
from Bruce Donnelly in May and June for in-kind automated calls, in-kind meeting room rentals
and in-kind printed materials.2

2. Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of the
statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). In
the 2010 eleetion cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400. Expenditures made by any
person in cooperation, consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of a candidate
or a candidate’s political committee shall be considered a contribution. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7)(B)(i).

Although there appears to be tension between Donnelly’s response and JWCC’s
post-response actions, the Commission finds that there is no reason to believe that any violation
occurred with respect to Donnelly’s phone calls. Donnelly states that he acted independently of
JWCC in engaging Javor to conduct auto-calls referencing meetings featuring Joe Walsh in
March through May 2010, while JWCC’s subsequently reported in-kind contributions frorh
Donnelly in its 2010 July Quarterly Report. Apparently, after filing its response, IWCC
determined either that some of Mr. Donnelly’s expenditures for activities promoting meetings
with Mr. Walsh and for meeting space in May and June 2010 may have constituted in-kind
contributions and reported his activities as such, or Mr. Donnelly paid for printed materials, in-
kind auto-calls and meeting room rentals on JWCC’s behalf. Even so, because Mr. Donnelly

indicates that he engaged Mr. Javor to conduct auto-calls to promote meetings featuring Walsh

2 Donnelly’s in-kind contributions include: $265.80 and $304.40 in in-kind automated calls on May 2, 2010, and
June 9, 2010, respectively; $330 in in-kind meeting room rentals on each of May 4 and June 15, 2010; and $400 and
$72 in in-kind printed material on June 23 and 30, 2010, respectively.
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after the primary election, and Donnelly's newly reported in-kind contributions—totaling
$1,702—were less than the $2,400 contribution limit for the general election, it does not appear
that Mr. Donnelly made excessive contributions in connection with the general election.

Therefore, the Commission has determined to find no reason to believe that Bruce Donnelly

violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

N

DEC 1 ¢ 2010

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Richard Cape

I
Round Lake Beach, IL. 60073
RE: MUR 6292
Dear Mr. Cape:

On December 1, 2010, the Federal Election Commission reviewed the allegations in your
May 17, 2010, cemplaint and found that on the basis of the information provided in it and
information provided in the responses to the complaint, there is no reason to believe that Joe
Walsh for Congress Cummittce and Helene M. Miller-Walsh, in her offieial capacity as treasurer
(“the Committee™), violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) in cennentian with in-kind contributions fram
Bruce Donnelly and 2 U.S.C. §§ 441f and 441a(f). The Commistion also found no reasen to
believe that Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f or that Bryan Javor, Briuce Donnelly, and
Christopher Geissler violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). In the exercise of its prosecutorial
discretion, the Commission dismissed the allegations that the Committee violated
2U.S.C.§434(b)and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5 in connection with the reporting of certain
debts, an in-kind contribution, and an advance; and dismissed a violation of 2 U.S.C. § 433(2) far
failing ta timcly file a Statement of Organization. Furthermore, the Cammission cautioned the
Committee that debts, in-kind cootributions, and slaff advances must be timely moported in
accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5, and that a Statement of
Organijzation muat be filed no later thaa 10 days after a candidate has designated a principal
campaign committee in accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 433(a). Accordingly, on December 1, 2010,
the Commission closed the file in this matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Palicy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Ped. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Flacing First General
Counsel’s Reports on tho Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). The Factual and
Legal Analyses, which more fully explain the Commission’s findings, are enclosed.
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Mr. Richard Cape
MUR 6292
Page 2

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).
Sincerely,

Christopher Hughey
Acting General Counsel

Jo L Fk

BY: "Roy Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analyses
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENTS: Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc., MUR: 6292
and Helene M. Miller-Walsh, in her official

capacity as treasurer
Joe Walsh

L. INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a complaint filed by Richard Cape, a former campaign |
employee, alleging that the Joe Walsh for Cengress Cemmittee, Inc., and Helene M. Miller-
Walsh, in her official capacity as treasurer (“JWCC™): (1) failed to pay for or disclose as debts
or in-kind contributions legal services provided to, and automated phone calls made on behalf of,
JWCC; (2) failed to pay for or disclose a debt for primary election night party expenses; and
(3) failed to disclose as an in-kind contribution poll results given to it but paid for by a third
party. The complaint also alleges that JWCC and the candidate, Joe Walsh, accepted excessive
contributions from family members funneled to the campaign through multiple donors.

Based on our review of the available information, the Commission exercises its
prosecutorial discretion and dismisses allegations that JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b} and
11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5 by failing to disclose certain transactions, bat issues a letter of
caution to it; dismisses as a matter of prosecutorial discretion JWCC'’s violation of 2 U.S.C.

§ 433(a) for failing to timely file a Statement of Organization, but also cautions it as to that
violation; finds no reason to believe that JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) by failing to report in-
kind contributions in the form of auto-calls from a supporter; and finds no reason to believe that
JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f in connection with the allegation that it accepted
excessive contributions in the names of others. The Commission also finds no reason to believe

that Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f.
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Factual and Legal Analysis

II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A.  Reporting Violations

1 Background

The complaint first alleges that IWCC;'failed to pay for or disclose as a debt or in-kind
contribution legal services provided by a Chicago law firm from December 2009 through May
2010, and it attaches letters and emails relating to those services. Complaint at 1. The
documenis indicate the taw firm, among other things, represented JWCC in a lawsuit filed by
Walsh’s first campaign manager, Keith Liscio, seeking payment of $20,000 for services he
provided to the campaign, and advised JWCC concemning a cease and desist letter that counsel
for singer Joe Walsh had sent JWCC for using a song written by the singer in a campaign video.
Complaint at 8-9.

The complaint also asserts that JWCC did not disclose any payment made to, or a debt
owed to, Dock’s Bar and Grill for costs associated with a February 2, 2010, primary election
night party held there, including the cost of room rental, appetizers, and a candidate preparation
room. Complaint at 1.

The complaint further alleges that JWCC failed to pay for or disclose auto-calls and a poll
condncted by Brysn Javor. Javor appears to have provided at least some of the services to
JWCC through a start-up compazy called ReachFly.! See YR Spotlight on Bryan Javar,
Outgaing Chairman, McHenry County Blog, March 14, 2010, available at

http://mchenrycountyblog.com/2010/03/14/yr-spotlight-on-bryan-javor-outgoing-chairman/.

The complaint maintains that Javor conducted auto-calls directly for JWCC on February 1, 2010,

and conducted a poll for a Walsh primary opponent, Christopher Geissler, and gave the poll

! ReachFly registered as an LLC in Illinois on March 15, 2010.
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MUR 6292 (Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc.) 3
Factual and Legal Analysis

results to JWCC before giving them to Geissler. Emails attached to the complaint confirm Javor
conducted phone calls on February 1, 2010, and that he was to conduct a poll on
January 25 or 26, 2010. Complaint at 10-11.

In response, JWCC acknowledges that it retainéd counsel to help it set up its legal and
operating structures and to address the types of issues reflected in the complaint attachments.
JWCC Response at 2. JWCC asscrts that the law firm issued invoices for its services on
March 15 and Aprii 15, 2010, acknowledged that it had not yet paid the invaices, and stated thud
it would disclose the debis owed in an amended 2010 April Quarterly Report and in its upcoming
2010 July Quarterly Report. /d. After filing its response to the complaint, JWCC amended its
2010 April Quarterly Report disclosing a $2,138.50 debt to the firm for “legal fees to dismiss”
the Liscio lawsuit. It filed two amendments to its 2010 July Quarterly Report. The first
amendment, filed on July 15, 2010, disclosed two adﬂitional debts to the firm consisting of
$3,132.75 for “legal fees dealing with FEC and incorporation” and $1,350 for fees related to a
court hearing in the Liscio lawsuit. The second amendment, filed on October 13, 2010, disclosed
a fourth debt to the firm of $4,939.81 for “legal fees in defense of disputed debt and FEC issue.”

JWCC also acknowledges that Walsh personally paid for election night party expenses,
inclnding a $200 deposit to seaure restaurant apace for the party and ajiproximately $825 for
food, refreshments, and related expenses. JWCC Response at 3. JWCC also acknowledges that
these payments were not reflected in its 2010 April Quarterly Report. /d. Following its
response, JWCC amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report, reporting Walsh’s $854.25 staff
advance as a memo entry on Schedule A for “Victory Night celebration on 2/2/10-to be

reimbursed.” It also reported that amount as a debt owed to Walsh on Schedule D since JWCC
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had not yet reimbursed him. JWCC'’s disclosure reports do not reflect the payment of a deposit,
which presumably could have been appliea toward the total bill.

As for the auto-calls and poll conducted by Javor, JWCC *‘does not dispute” that it
engaged Javor’s company, ReachFly, to perform auto calls in the days leading up to the primary.
JWCC Response at 2. It maintains that ReachFly “subsequently” issued an invoice to JWCC and
that its payment of the invoice would be reported in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Id.

With respect m pulling, JWCC says the allegatian that it received a pod conducted by
Javor for ane of Walsh’s oppanents “simply is not true.” JWCC Respanse at 3. It represents that
it engaged ReachFly on January 26, 2010, to conduct a limited poll to test name recognition and
geographic areas of strength and weakness to permit it to more effectively target its efforts in the
closing days of the primary campaign. Id. JWCC again maintains that ReachFly did not issue an
invoice for the poll during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting period but did so “subsequently”
and that it would report expenditures for these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Id.

Bryan Javor states that it is JWCC’s responsibility to report any contributions he made to
it. He denies, however, that he gave poll results to another candidate. Christopher Geissler, the
Walsh primary opponent whose poll sesults were allegedly given to JWCC, states that he has no
knowledge of who provided serviees to Walsh but is interested in how phone survey information
compiled hy a consulting firm engaged by his campaign committee was furnishad to an
bpponern.

After JWCC submitted its response, it amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect
a January 26, 2010, $550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a

$1,081.27 debt owed to ReachFly for “tech assistance and phone calls.” It also disclosed three
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disbursements to ReachFly in the 2010 July Quarterly Report, all for “technology consulting™:
$1,334, $1,500 and $1,250 on May 1, May 21, and June 1, 2010, respectively.

JWCC appears to have reported the auto-calls and limited poll conducted by Javor and
ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report as an in-kind contribution and debt rather
than in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably because the underlying services were
provided in the week leading up to the February 2, 2010, & period covered by the 2010 April
Quarterly Report. The three disbursementa to ReachFly disclosed in the 2010 Jety Quarterly
Report appear to relate to services Javor provided at a later time since their pﬁrpose is listed as
“technology and consulting” rather than auto calls or phone calls.

2. Analysis

A political committee must report the identification of each person who makes a
contribution aggregating in excess of $200 per election cycle. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(3). The
payment by an individual from personal funds for costs incurred in obtaining goods and services
that are used by or on behalf of a political committee is a contribution unless specifically
exempted under the Act and Commission regulations. 11 CF.R. § 116.5(b). Additionally, an
obligation arising from such a payment shall be reported as a debt umtil it is reimbursed.

11 C.F.R. § 116.5(c). Further, a political eommittee must report the amount and nature of
outstanding debts and obligations it owes. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8). A debt or obligation in exeess
of $500 must be reported as of the date on which the debt or obligation is incurred. 11 C.F.R.

§ 104.11(b). A debt or obligation of $500 or less must be reported as of the time the payment is

made or not later than 60 days after the obligation is incurred, whichever comes first. /d. If the

2 Bruce Donnelly, who hired Javor to conduct auto calls after the primary, has stated that Javor was invited to join
the JIWCC campaign staff after complainaat resigned in May 2010, which supports this conclusion, See supra at
p.8.
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exact amount of a debt or obligation is not known, the disclosure report shall state that the
amount reported is an estimate. /d.

Based on the available information, JWCC failed to timely report debts it owed to a law
firm. In December 2009, the law firm began representing JWCC with respect to the Liscio
lawsuit, which included an exchange of phone calls and correspondence and two court
appearances during the period covered by the 2010 April Quarterly Report. Complaint at 8.
Becausa the lagal services provided to JWCC regarding Liscio’s lawsuit exceeded $500 as of
March 31, 2010, the end of the 2010 April Quarterly reparting periad, JWCC shauld have
reported that deht in its original 2010 April Quarterly Report. In addition, Illinios Secretary of
State records show that JWCC was incorporated on February 22, 2010, indicating the firm’s
work related to JWCC’s legal structure occurred during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting
period. Thus, the portion of the $3,131 debt to the firm JWCC reported in the 2010 July
Quarterly Report attributable to the firm’s incorporation work should also have been reported in
the 2010 April Quarterly Report to the extent it exceeded $500. All told, JWCC failed to report
debts for legal services provided through March 31, 2010, of at least $2,183.50 but less than
$5,721. JWCC appears to have timely disclosed two additional law firm debts in its original
2010 July Quarterly Repaat; however it did not disclose a fourth law firm debt of $4,939 until it
amended that report on October 13, 2010.

With respect to the other reporting issues, JWCC failed to disclose in its original 2010
April Quarterly Report an $854 advance from Walsh for the cost of a primary election night
party, a $550 in-kind contribution from Bryan Javor for auto-calls, and a $1,081.27 debt owed to

Javor’s firm, ReachFly, for phone calls made on JWCC'’s behalf.




11044283648

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

MUR 6292 (Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc.) 7
Factual and Legal Analysis

Even though JWCC failed to disclose the transactions discussed above, the Commission
is exercising its prosecutorial discretion and dismissing the allegations that JWCC violated
2U.S.C. §434(b) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5. See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831
(1985). The transactions complained of have now been disclosed and were not reportable in an
election-sensitive report, and they involved relatively low dollar amounts.

Although not addressed in the complaint, an examination of JWCC's disclosure reports
shows that JWCC failed to timely file a Stateraent of Organizatiop. Joe Walsh filed a Staternent
of Candidacy on Qotobar 30, 2009, designating JWCC as his principal campaign committee. A
principal campaign committee must file a Statement of Organization no later than 10 days after
designation. 2 U.S.C. § 433(a). JWCC did not file a Statement of Organization until January 13,
2010. Because the late-filed Statement of Organization did not affect TWCC’s timely filing of its
initial disclosure report, the 2010 Pre-Primary Report, on January 22, 2010, and the Commission
is not pursuing JWCC for other violations, the Commission is exercising its prosecutorial
discretion and dismissing JWCC’s violation of 2 U.S.C. § 433(a). See Heckler v. Chaney at 831.

The Commission is also issuing a cautionary ietter to JWCC because it violated
2 U.S.C. § 433(a) and effectively admits to vislating 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) through its amendments.
In addition, even though JWCC has now disclased the transactians at issue, JWCC appears to
have disclosed them only in response to a complaint filed by a former staffer. As it appears that
part of the $3,132.75 debt to the law firm reported in the 2010 July Quarterly Report involved
work relating to JWCC'’s incorporation and performed during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting
period, the Commission is also advising JWCC to review the law firm debt and amend its

disclosure reports accordingly.
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B. Automated Phone Calls Paid for by Bruce Donnelly

1. Background

The complaint also alleges that JWCC gave phone data to Bryan Javor to assist him in
conducting numerous automated phone calls paid for by Bruce Donnelly to increase Joe Walsh’s
name recognition and help get out the vote for him, and JWCC failed to report the expenditures
for these calls as an in-kind contribution frem Donnelly. The complaint does not provide a tirne
frame for these auto-calls, and none of the documents pmvided shed further light on this
allegation. Accarding to Donnelly, these phene calls were made afier the primary election.

Daonnelly acknowledges that he used Bryan Javor’s marketing services in March, April,
and May 2010 to make a limited number of local auto-calls, and that complainant, while
employed by JWCC, provided Javor with some of the phone data for the calls. Donnelly states
that the auto-calls were made to promote attendance at free, open meetings of a new local group
of independent voters that encourages voters to become better informed about issues. Some of
the calls mentioned that Walsh was among the invited speakers at the meetings, but Donnelly
maintains that the auto-calls did not solicit funds for Walsh or the group, and the meetings were
not fundraisers for Walsh. Donnelly believes that none of his personal spending with respect to
the auta-calls should be attributed to JWCC &s an in-kind contributian as he independently
selected who to call based on his own criteria far marketing the group, and JWCC exercised no
control over the content of the calls, the group’s meeting agenda, or his use of Javor, whose
services he used because it was one of the cheapest options to promote the group. Even if his
spending were deemed to be an in-kind contribution, Donnelly maintains the value would have
been within his contribution limit for the general election'. JWCC’s reports confirm that

Donnelly had made only one $1,500 primary election contribution as of June 7, 2010.
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JWCC suggests that Mr. Donnelly’s activities did not constitute coordinated
communications, and thus an in-kind contribution, as Donnelly states that “he did not coordinate
the timing or content of the [auto-] calls” with the JWCC “or its agents,” and the purpose of the
calls was “not to advocate for Joe Walsh's election of Joe Walsh.”> JWCC Response at 2.
Nonetheless, JWCC states that it determined that the value of the phone data it supplied to Javor
was $70, and it will disclose this amount as an-kind contribation to Donnelly’s organization in
JWCC’s 2010 July Quarterly fieport. A at 3.

Following submission of its response, JWCC reported an-kind contribution of $70 to
Bruce Donnelly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report rather than its 2010 July Quarterly
Report, presumably signifying that the phone data was provided to Javor before March 31, 2010.
In addition, in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, JWCC reported six in-kind general election
contributions, totaling $1,702, from Bruce Donnelly in May and June for in-kind automated
calls, in-kind meeting room rentals and in-kind printed materials.*

2. Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of the

statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1XA). In

the 2010 election cycle, the individual cantribution limit is $2,400. Expenditures made by any

3 Commission regulations provide that a communication is considered coordinated with a candidate, and thus, an
in-kind contribution to the candidate’s political committee, if it is paid for by a person other than a candidate and
meets certain content and conduct standards. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(a). A communication satisfies the content
standards if, for example, it is a public communication that expressly advocates the election or defeat of a clearly
identified candidate. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(c)(3). A communication satisfies the conduct standard if, for example,
a candidate or a political committee is materially involved in decisions regarding the content, intended audience, or
frequency ar timing of the enmmunication. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(d)(2).

* Donnelly’s in-kind contributions include: $265.80 and $304.40 in in-kind automated calls on May 2, 2010, and
June 9, 2010, respectively; $330 in in-kind meeting room rentals on each of May 4 and June 15, 2010; and $400 and
$72 in in-kind printed material on June 23 and 30, 2010, respectively.
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Factual and Legal Analysis

person in cooperation, consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of a candidate
or a candidate’s political committee shall be considered a contribution. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7)(B)(i). The Act prohibits a politicai committee from accepting a contribution in
excess of the Act’s limitations. 2-U.S.C. § 441a(f). Political committees must file periodic
reports that disclose contributions from persons other than political committees and the
identification of cach person who makes contributions aggregating in excess of $200 within an
election cycle. 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(b)(2)(A) and (3).

Although there appears to be tension between what Donnelly has stated about his
activities and JWCC'’s post-response actions, the Commission finds that there is no reason to
believe that any violation occurred with respect to Donnelly's phone calls. Mr. Donnelly
indicates that he engaged Mr. Javor to conduct auto-calls to promote meetings featuring Walsh
after the primary election, and Donnelly’s newly reported in-kind contributions—totaling
$1,702—were less than the $2,400 contribution limit for the general election. Thus, it does not
appear that JWCC accepted excessive contributions in connection with the general election. In
addition, because the in-kind contributions were apparently made in May and June 2010, they
were timely reported in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Therefore, the Commission finds ro
reason to pelieve that Joe Walsh for Cangress Commiittee violatod 2 U.S.C. § 441a(f) or 2 U.S.C.
§ 434(b).

C. Alleged Excessive Contributions Made by Candidate’s Family
Through Others

1. Background

The complaint also alleges that Walsh received large contributions in excess of the
$2,400 per-election contribution limit from family members that were funneled to the campaign

through multiple donors “and questionable bookkeeping by” JWCC’s treasurer, Helene Miller-
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Walsh, who is Walsh’s wife. Complaint at 1. The complainant does not appear to have personal
knowledge of the facts underlying his allegation since he couches it in terms of his belief.
Instead, he refers to an unnamed individual who can confirm the allegation but who is “reluctant
to release information of checks and routing information due to fear of prosecution on his
behalf.” Id. The complainant states that he will immediately forward information to the
Commission if it becomes available. /d. He hasnot done so.

JWCC characterizes the allagation as “a vajjue and non-speciiic reference to other
violations” related to contribution limits and states that it can “affer no response to these
unsubstantiated allegations” without additional information. JWCC Response at 4.

2. Anglysis

No person shall make a contribution in the name of another person or knowingly permit
his or her name to be used to make such a contribution. ' 2 U.S.C. § 441f. No person shall
knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another. Id.

The complainant does not appear to have personal knowledge that excessive
contributions from Walsh family members were funneled through others to the campaign, and he
does not provide specific facts about the identity of the “multiple contributars through whom
family contrihutions were allegedly funneled, tha identity of the family nrembers allegedly
involved, ar how questionahle bookkeeping may have facilitated any suck scheme. Nor does he
identify the individual whom he says can confirm the allegation. Under 11 C.F.R. § 111.4(d)(3),
a complaint should contain a clear and concise recitation of the facts that describe a violation of
the Act or Commission regulations. /d. The complaint lacks sufficient specific facts, such as the
identities of any excessive family contributors or conduits, to establish a violation of section

441f. Moreover, the only identified source of information that could give rise to a belief in the
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rise to a belief in the truth of the allegations is a reference to unspecified checks and routing
numbers that appear to be accessible to an unidentified individual.

Accordingly, in the absence of any further information from the complainant with respect
to this allegation, the Commission has determined to find no reason to believe that Joe Walsh for

Congress Committee and Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENT: Bryan Javor MUR: 6292

L INTRODUCTION
This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by

Richard M. Cape, alleging that Bryan Javor violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,

as amended (“the Act”).
II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
A.  Backgroupd

The complaint alleges that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC") failed to pay
for or disclose automated phone calls and a poll conducted by Bryan Javor. If the services
provided by Javor constituted an in-kind contribution and exceeded the $2,400 per election
contribution limit, Javor may have violated the Act. Javor appears to have provided at least

some of the services to JWCC through a start-up company called ReachFly.! See YR Spotlight

on Bryan Javor, Outgoing Chairman, McHenry County Blog, March 14, 2010, available at

complaint maintains that Javor conducted auto-calls direotly for JWCC on February 1, 2010, and
conducted a poll for a Walsh primary opponent, Christopher Geissler, and gave the results of that
poll to JWCC before giving them to Geissler. Emails attached to the complaint confirm Javor
conducted phone calls on February 1, 2010, and that he was to conduct a poll on

January 25 or 26, 2010. Complaint at 10-11.

! ReachFly registered as an LLC in Illinois on March 15, 2010.
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JWCC does not dispute that it engaged Javor’s company, ReachFly, to perform auto calls
in the days leading up to the primary. It maintains that ReachFly subsequently issued an invoice
to JWCC and that its payment of the invoice would be reported in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report.

With respect to polling, JIWCC states that the allegation that it received a poll conducted
by Javor for one of Walsh’s opponents is simply not true. It represents that it engaged ReachFly
on Jantary 26, 2010, to conduct a limited poll to test name recognition amd geegraphic areas of
strength and weakness to permit it to more effectively target its efforts in the closing days of the
primary campaign. JWCC again maintains that ReachFly did not issue an invoice for the poll
during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting period but did so subsequently and that it would report
expenditures for these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report.

Bryan Javor makes no mention in his brief email response of invoices to, or payments
from, JWCC for auto-calls or a poll. Rather, he states that “[a]ny and all contributions made by
me to the Joe Walsh Campaign are the sole responsibility of the campaign to report in a timely
and proper manner.” Javor Response at Z. He denies, however, that he “slipped” poll results to
another candidate, calling the allegation “patently false and defamatory” and cuntrary to his
business praetices. /d.

Christopher Geissler, the Walsh primary opponent whose poll results were allegedly
given to JWCC, states that he has no knowledge of who provided services to Walsh but is
interested in how phone survey information compiled by a consulting firm engaged by his
campaign committee was furnished to an opponent.

JWCC has now amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect a January 26, 2010,

$550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a $1,081.27 debt owed to
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ReachFly for “tech assistance and phone calls.” It also disclosed three disbursements to
ReachFly in the 2010 July Quarterly Report, all for “technology consulting™: $1,334, $1,500 and
$1,250 on May 1, May 21, and June 1, 2010, respectively.

JWCC appears to have reported the auto-calls and limited poll conducted by Javor and
ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report as an in-kind contribution and debt rather
than in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably because the underlying services were
provided in the week leading up to the February 2, 2010, e period covered by the 2010 April
Quarterly Report. The three disbursements to ReachFly disclosed in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report appear to relate to services Javor provided at a later time since their purpose is listed as
“technology and consulting” rather than auto calls or phone calls.

B.  Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of
the statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
In the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400. Javor's reported $550 in-
kind contribution to JWCC in the form of auto calls did not exceed the contribution limit of
$2,400, and JWCC has reported as a debt the other services Javor provided through ReachFly on
or before the February 2, 2010 primary election. Accordingly, the Commission has determined

to find no reason to believe that Bryan Javor violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

RESPONDENT: Bruce Donnelly MUR: 6292

I. INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by
Richard M. Cape, alloging that Bruce Donnelly violmec the Federal Election Campaign Act of
1971, as amended (“the Act”).

IIL. FACTUAL AND I.EGAL ANALYSIS

A.  Background

The complaint alleges that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC’’) gave phone
data to Bryan Javor to assist him in conducting numerous automated phone calls paid for by
Bruce Donnelly to increase Joe Walsh's name recognition and help get out the vote for him, and
JWCC failed to report the expenditures for these calls as an in-kind contribution from Donnelly.
If the allegation is true and the phone calls cost in excess of the $2,400 per-election contribution
limit, Mr. Donnelly may have made an excessive in-kind contribution. The complaint does not
provide a time frame for these auto-calls, and none of thc documents provided shed further light
on this allegation. According to Bruce Donnelly, these phone catls took place after the primary
election. Bruce Donnelly Response at 1.

Donnelly acknowledges that he used Bryan Javor’s marketing services in March, April,
and May 2010 to make a limited number of local auto-calls, and that complainant, while
employed by JWCC, provided Javor with some of the phone data for the calls. Donnelly
Response at 1-2. Donnelly states that the auto-calls were made to promote attendance at free,

open meetings of a new local group of independent voters that encourages voters to become
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better informed about issues. /d. Some of the calls mentioned that Walsh was among the invited
speakers at the meetings, but Donnelly maintains that the auto-calls did not solicit funds for
Walsh or the group, and the meetings were not fundraisers for Walsh. /d. Donnelly concludes
that none of his personal spending with respect to the auto-calls should be attributed to JWCC as
an in-kind contribution as he independently selected who to call based on his own criteria for
marketing the group, and JWCC exercised no control over the content of the calls, the group’s
meeting agenda, or his use of Javor, whose services he uetd because it was one of the cheapest
optians to promote the group. /d. Even if his spending were deemed te be an in-kind
contribution, Donnelly maintains the value would have been within his contribution limit for the
general election. Jd. JWCC’s reports confirm that Donnelly had made only one $1,500 primary
election contribution as of the date he filed his response on June 7, 2010.

JWCGC relies on statements in Mr. Donnelly’s response. JWCC suggests that
Mr. Donnelly’s activities did not constitute coordinated communications, and thus an in-kind
contribution, as Donnelly has stated that he did not coordinate the timing or content of auto-calls
with the JWCC or its agent and the purpose of the calls was not to advocate for Joe Walsh’s
election.”’ Nonetheless, WCC determined that the value of the phone data it supplied to Javor
was $70 and stated that it would disclose it as an-dcihd contribution to Donuelly’s erganization in
its 2010 July Quarterlty Report.

JWCC has since reported an-kind contribution of $70 to Bruce Donnelly in its amended

2010 April Quarterly Report rather than its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably signifying

A}

! Commission regulations provide that a commusication is considered cuordinated with a candidate, and thus, an in-
kind contribution to the candidate’s political committee, if it is paid for by a person other than a candidate and meets
certain content and conduct standards. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(a). A communication satisfies the content

standards if, for example, it is a public communication that expressly advocates the election or defeat of a clearly
identified candidate. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(c)(3). A communication satisfies the conduct standard if, for example,
a candidate or a political committee is materially involved in decisions regarding the content, intended audience, or
frequency or timing of the communication. See 11 C.F.R. § 109.21(d)(2).
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that the phone data was provided to Javor before March 31, 2010. In addition, in its 2010 July
Quarterly Report, JWCC reported six in-kind general election contributions, totaling $1,702,
from Bruce Donnelly in May and June for in-kind automated calls, in-kind meeting room rentals
and in-kind printed materials.?

2. Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of the
statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal uffice. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). In
the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400. Expenditures made by any
person in cooperation, consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of a candidate
or a candidate’s political committee shall be considered a contribution. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7X(B)(D).

Although there appears to be tension between Donnelly’s response and JWCC'’s
post-response actions, the Commission finds that there is no reason to believe that any violation
occurred with respect to Donnelly’s phone calls. Donnelly states that he acted independently of
JWCC in engaging Javor to conduct auto-calls referencing meetings featuring Joe Walsh in
March through May 2010, while JWCC's subsequently reported in-kind contributions from
Donnelly in its 2010 July Quaﬁnrly Repoct. Apparently, after filing its rcdponse, JWCC
determined either that some of Mr. Donnelly’s expenditures for activities promoting meetings
with Mr. Walsh and for meeting space in May and June 2010 may have constituted in-kind
contributions and reported his activities as such, or Mr. Donnelly paid for printed materials, in-
kind auto-calls and meeting room rentals on JWCC's behalf. Even s0, because Mr. Donnelly

indicates that he engaged Mr. Javor to conduct auto-calls to promote meetings featuring Walsh

? Donnelly's in-kind contributions include: $265.80 and $304.40 in in-kind automated calls on May 2, 2010, and
June 9,:2010, respectively; $330 in in-kind meeting room reatals on each of May 4 and June 15, 2010; and $400 and
$72 in in-kind printed material on June 23 and 30, 2010, respectively.
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after the primary election, and Donnelly’s newly reported in-kind contributions—totaling
$1,702—were less than the $2,400 contribution limit for the general election, it does not appear
that Mr. Donnelly made excessive contributions in connection with the general election.

Therefore, the Commission has determined to find no reason to believe that Bruce Donnelly

violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

RESPONDENT: Christopher Geissler MUR: 6292

L GENERATION OF MATTER

This matter was generated by a complaint filed by Richard Cape, alleging that
Christopher Geissler violared the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the
Act™).

II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The complaint maintains that Bryan Javor conducted a poll on behalf of, and paid for by,
Christopher Geissler, a primary opponent of Joe Walsh and gave the results to Walsh's principal
campaign committee, Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC"), before giving them to
Mr. Geissler. If the allegation is true, the poll results may have constituted an excessive in-kind
contribution if the value exceeded the $2,400 per election limit. An email attached to the
complaint confirms Javor was to conduct a poll on January 25 or 26, 2010. Complaint at 10-11.

Christopher Geissler responded that he has no knowledge of who provided services to
Walsh bur is interested in how phone survey information compiled by a consulting firm engaged
by his campaige committec was fumished to an opponent. Geissler Response.

JWCC states that the allegation that it received a poll conducted by Javor for one of
Walsh's opponents is simply not true. It represents that it engaged ReachFly on January 26,
2010, to conduct a limited poll to test name recognition and geographic areas of strength and
weakness to permit it to more effectively target its efforts in the closing days of the primary

campaign. JWCC maintains that ReachFly did not issue an invoice for the poll during the 2010
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April Quarterly reporting period but did so subsequently and that it would report expenditures for
these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report.

Bryan Javor states that it is JWCC'’s responsibility to report any contributions he made to
it. He denies, however, that he gave poll results to another candidate different than the one who
paid for the poll.

JWCC has now amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect a January 26, 2010,
$550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a $1,081.27 debt owed to
ReachFly for “tech asalstance and phone calls.” Thus, JWCC appears to have reported the
limited poll conducted by Javar and ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report.

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of
the statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)}(A).
In the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400.

The available information does not suggest that results from a poll Geissler paid for were
given to JWCC, which includes JWCC’s denials and Geissler’s stated lack of knowledge about
any such action. Accordingly, the Commission has determined to find no reasomn to believe that

Christopher Geissler violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

Mr. Christopher Geissler

| DEC 1 0 2010
Barrington, IL. 60010

RE: MUR 6292
Dear Mr. Geissler:

On May 20, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified you of a complaint alleging
violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. On
December 1, 2010, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the complaint,
information provided by you, and information provided by others, there is no reason to believe
you violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this
matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). The Factual and
Legal Analysis, which explains the Commission’s finding, is enclosed for your information.

If you have any questions, please contact Dawn M. Odtowski, the atorney assigned to
this maiter at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

S 1

Roy Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

RESPONDENT: Christopher Geissler MUR: 6292

I.  GENERATION OF MATTER

This matter was generated by a complaint filed by Richard Cape, alleging that
Christopher Qeissler violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the
Act™).

IL  FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

The complaint maintains that Bryan Javor conducted a poll on behalf of, and paid for by,
Christopher Geissler, a primary opponent of Joe Walsh and gave the results to Walsh’s principal
campaign committee, Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC"), before giving them to
Mr. Geissler. If the allegation is true, the poll results may have constituted an excessive in-kind
contribution if the value exceeded the $2,400 per election limit. An email attached to the
complaint confirms Javor was to conduct a poli on January 25 or 26, 2010, Complaint at 10-11.

Christopher Geissler respondéd that he has no knowledge of who provided services to
Walsh but is intereeted in how phons survey infarmation compiled by a consulting firm engaged
by his campaign committee was furnished to an opponent. Geissler Response.

JWCC states that the allegation that it received a poll conducted by Javor for one of
Walsh’s opponents is simply not true. It represents that it engaged ReachFly on January 26,
2010, to conduct a limited poll to test name recognition and geographic areas of strength and
weakness to permit it to more effectively target its efforts in the closing days of the primary

campaign. JWCC maintains that ReachFly did not issue an invoice for the poll during the 2010




110442836386

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

MUR 6292 (Christopher Geissler) 2
Factual and Legal Analysis

April Quarterly reporting period but did so subsequently and that it would report expenditures for
these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report.

Bryan Javor states that it is JWCC’s responsibility to report any contributions he made to
it. He denies, however, th;t he gave poll results to another candidate different than the one who
paid for the poll.

JWCC has now amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect a January 26, 2010,
$550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a $1,081.27 debt owed to
ReachFly for “tech assistance and phone calls.” Thus, JWCC appears to have reported the
limited poll conducted by Javor and ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report.

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of
the statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
In the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400.

The available information does not suggest that results from a poll Geissler paid for were
given to JWCC, which includes JWCC'’s denials and Geissler's stated lack of knowledge about
any such action. Accordingly, the Commission has determined to find no reason to believe that

Christopher Geissler violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

Mr. Bryan Javor DEC 1.0 2010
440 Westwood Ct., Suite A
Crystal Lake, IL. 60014

RE: MUR 6292

Dear Mr. Javor:

On May 20, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified you of a complaint alleging
violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. On
December 1, 2010, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the complaint,
information provided by you, and information provided by others, there is no reason to believe
you violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). Accordingly, the Commission closcd its file in this
matter.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). The Factual and
Legal Analysis, which explains the Commission’s finding, is enclosed for your information.

If you have any questions, please contact Dawn M. Odrowski, the attorney assigned to
this matter at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

7 dry

y Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

RESPONDENT: Bryan Javor MUR: 6292

L INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission by
Richard M. Cape, alleging that Bryan Javor violated the Federal Electiom Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended (“the Act™).
II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A.  Background

The complaint alleges that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee (“JWCC”) failed to pay
for or disclose automated phone calls and a poll conducted by Bryan Javor. If the services
provided by Javor constituted an in-kind contribution and exceeded the $2,400 per election
contribution limit, Javor may have violated the Act. Javor appears to have provided at least
some of the services to JWCC through a start-up company called ReachFly.! See YR Spotlight

on Bryan Javor, Outgoing Chairman, McHenry County Blog, March 14, 2010, available at

complaint maiatains that Javor cobducted auto-calls direotly for JWCC on February 1, 2010, and

conducted a poll for a Walsh primary opponent, Christopher Geissler, and gave the results of that
poll to JWCC before giving them to Geissler. Emails attached to the complaint confirm Javor
conducted phone calls on February 1, 2010, and that he was to conduct a poll on

January 25 or 26, 2010. Complaint at 10-11.

! ReachFly registered as an LLC in Illinois on March 15, 2010.
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JWCC does not dispute that it engaged Javor’s company, ReachFly, to perform auto calls
in the days leading up to the primary. It maintains that ReachFly subsequently issued an invoice
to JWCC and that its payment of the invoice would be reported in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report.

With respect to polling, JWCC states that the allegation that it received a poll conducted
by Javor for one of Walsh’s oppore:nts is simply not true. It represents that it engaged ReachPly
on Jannary 26, 2010, to conduct a limitad poll to test name cecognition and geographic areas of
strength and weakness to permit it to mare effectively target its efforts in the closing days of the
primary campaign. JWCC again maintains that ReachFly did not issue an invoice for the poll
during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting period but did so subsequently and that it would report
expenditures for these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report.

Bryan Javor makes no mention in his brief email response of invoices to, or payments
from, JWCC for auto-calls or a poll. Rather, he states that “[a]ny and all contributions made by
me to the Joe Walsh Campaign are the sole responsibility of the campaign to report in a timely
and proper manner.” Javor Response at 2. He denies, however, that he “slipped” poil results to
another candidate, calling the allegation “patently false and defamatory” and contrary to his
bwiness pmctices. Id,

Christophcer Geissler, the Walsh primary opponent whose pcll results were allegedly
given to JWCC, states that he has no knowledge of who provided services to Walsh but is
interested in how phone survey information compiled by a consulting firm engaged by his
campaign committee was furnished to an opponent.

JWCC has now amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect a January 26, 2010,

$550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a $1,081.27 debt owed to
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ReachFly for “tech assistance and phone calls.” It also disclosed three disbursements to
ReachFly in the 2010 July Quarterly Report, all for “technology consulting™: $1,334, $1,500 and
$1,250 on May 1, May 21, and June 1, 2010, respectively.

JWCC appears to have reported the auto-calls and limited poll conducted by Javor and
ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report as an in-kind contribution and debt rather
than in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably because the underlying services were
provided in the week leading up to the February 2, 2010, e period covered by tire 2010 April
Quarterly Report. The three disbursements to ReachFly disclosed in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report appear to relate to services Javor provided at a later time since their purpose is listed as
“technology and consulting” rather than auto calls or phone calls.

B.  Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of
the statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
In the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400. Javor's reported $550 in-
kind contribution to JWCC in the form of auto calls did not exceed the contribution limit of
$2,400, and JWCC has reported as a debt the ether services Javor provided through ReachIfly en
or before tirc Fehzuary 2, 2010 primary election. Accardingly, the Cnmmission has deterniined

to find no reason to believe that Bryan Javor violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A).
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

William J. Cadigan, Esq. DEC 1 0 2010

Law Office of William J. Cadigan
111 N. Canal Street, Suite 394
Chicago, IL 60606

RE: MUR 6292
Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc.,
and Helene M. Miller-Walsh, in her
official capacity as treasurer
Joe Walsh
Dear Mr. Cadigan:

On May 20, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients, Joe Walsh for
Congress Committee Inc., and Helene M. Miller Walsh, in her official capacity as treasurer (“the
Committee™) and Joe Walsh of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amsended. On December 1, 2010, the Commission found, oa
the basis of the inforaration in the complaint, inforraation provided by your clients, and other
available information, that there is no reason to believe that the Committee violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 434(b) in connection with in-kind contributions from Bruce Donnelly, that the Committee
violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441f and 441a(f), and that Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f. In the
exercise of its prosecutorial discretion, the Commission also dismissed the allegations that the
Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.11 and 116.5 in connection with the
reporting of certain debts, an in-kind contribution, and an advance. Finally, the Commission
dismissed an allegatioa raised by the Office of General Counsel that respondents violated

2 U.S.C. § 433(a) for failing to timely file a Statement of Organization. Accordingly, the
Commnission elosed the file in this matter on December 1, 2010.

The Commission cautions the Committee that debts, in-kind contributions, and staff
advances must be timely reported in accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.F.R.
§§ 104.11 and 116.5, and that a Statement of Organization must be filed no later than 10 days
after a candidate has designated a principal campaign commitfee in accordance with 2 U.S.C.
§ 433(a). The Commission also cautions the Committee that to the extent that the Committee’s
debt exceeds $500, it should be reported accordingly. See 11 C.F.R. § 116.5(b). The Committee
should amend its disclosure repoits if necessary.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Stetement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enfarcement and Related Files, 68 Fed.
Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Palicy Regarding Placing First General Counsel’s
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William J. Cadigan, Esq.
MUR 6292 (Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc.)
Page 2

Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). The Factual and Legal
Analysis, which explains the Commission's findings, is enclosed for your information.

If you have any questions, please contact Dawn M. Odrowski, the attorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sinc . ﬂ//
oy Q. Luckett
Acting Assistant General Counsel
Enclosure
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENTS: Joe Walsh for Congress Committee, Inc., MUR: 6292
and Helene M. Miller-Walsh, in her official

capacity as treasurer
Joe Walsh

I.  INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a complaint filed by Richard Cape, a former campaign
employee, alleging that the Joe Walsh for Cangress Committee, Inc., aod Helene M. Miller-
Walsh, in her official capacity as treasurer (“JWCC"): (1) failed to pay for or disclose as debts
or in-kind contributions legal services provided to, and automated phone calls made on behalf of,
JWCC,; (2) failed to pay for or disclose a debt for primary election night party expenses; and
(3) failed to disclose as an in-kind contribution poll results given to it but paid for by a third
party. The complaint also alleges that JWCC and the candidate, Joe Walsh, accepted excessive
contributions from family members funneled to the campaign through multiple donors.

Baéed on our review of the available information, the Commission exercises its
prosecutorial discretion and dismisses allegations that JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and
11 C.FR. §§ 104.11 and 116.5 by failing to disclose certdin transactions, bt issues a letter of
caution to it; dismisses ac a matter of prosecutorial discretion JWCC'’s violation of 2 U.S.C.
§ 433(a) for failing to timely file a Statement of Organization, but also cautions it as to that
violation; finds no reason to believe that JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) by failing to report in-
kind contributions in the form of auto-calls from a supporter; and finds no reason to believe that
JWCC violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f in connection with the allegation that it accepted
excessive contributions in the names of others. The Commission also finds no reason to believe

that Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f.
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II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
A. Reporting Violations

1 Background
The complaint first a.lléges that JWCC failed to pay for or disclose as a debt or in-kind

contribution legal services provided by a Chicago law firm from December 2009 through May
2010, and it attaches letters and emails relating to those services. Complaint at 1. The
documents indicate the law firm, among other things, rapresented JWCC in a lawsuit filed by
Walsh'’s first campaign manager, Keith Liscio, seeking payment of $20,000 for services he
provided to the campaign, and advised JWCC conceming a cease and desist letter that counsel
for singer Joe Walsh had sent JWCC for using a song written by the singer in a campaign video.
Complaint at 8-9.

The complaint also asserts that JWCC did not disclose any payment made to, or a debt
owed to, Dock’s Bar and Grill for costs associated with a February 2, 2010, primary election
night party held there, including the cost of room rental, appetizers, and a candidate preparation
room. Complaint at 1.

The complaint further alleges that JWCC failed to pay for or disclose auto-calls and a poll
conducted by Bryan Javor. Javor appears to have provided at least some of the services to
JWCC through a start-up company called ReachFly.! See YR Spatlight on Bryan Javor,
Outgoing Chairman, McHenry County Blog, March 14, 2010, gvailable at
http://mchenrycountyblog.com/2010/03/14/yy-spotlight-on-bryan-javor-outgoing-chairman/.

The complaint maintains that Javor conducted auto-calls directly for JWCC on February 1, 2010,

and conducted a poll for a Walsh primary opponent, Christopher Geissler, and gave the poll

! ReachFly registered as an LLC in Illinois on March 15, 2010.
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results to JWCC before giving them to Geissler. Emails attached to the complaint confirm Javor
conducted phone calls on February 1, 2010, and that he was to conduct a poll on
January 25 or 26, 2010. Complaint at 10-11.

In response, JWCC acknowledges that it retained counsel to help it set up its legal and - -»
operating structures and to address the types of issues refiected in the complaint attachments.
JWCC Response at 2. JWCC asserts that the law firm issued invoices for its services on
March 15 and Aprii 15, 2010, acknowiedged that it had not yet paid the invoices, and ataicd that
it wauld disclose the debis owed in an amended 2010 April Quarterly Repart and in its npcoming
2010 July Quarterly Report. /d. After filing its response to the complaint, JWCC amended its
2010 April Quarterly Report disclosing a $2,138.50 debt to the firm for “legal fees to dismiss”
the Liscio lawsuit. It filed two amendments to its 2010 July Quarterly Report. The first
amendment, filed on July 15, 2010, disclosed two additional debts to the firm consisting of
$3,132.75 for “legal fees dealing with FEC and incorporation” and $1,350 for fees related to a
court hearing in the Liscio lawsuit. The second amendment, filed on October 13, 2010, disclosed
a fourth debt to the firm of $4,959.81 for “legal fees in defense of disputed debt and FEC issue.”

JWCC also acknowledges that Walsh personally paid for election night party expenses,
including a $200 depesit to secure restaurant apace for the party and approximately $825 for
food, refreshments, and related expenses. JWCC Respanse at 3. JWCC alsa acknowledges that
these payments were not reflected in its 2010 April Quarterly Report. Id. Following its
response, JWCC amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report, reporting Walsh’s $854.25 staff
advance as a memo entry on Schedule A for “Victory Night celebration on 2/2/10-to be

reimbursed.” It also reported that amount as a debt owed to Walsh on Schedule D since JWCC
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had not yet reimbursed him. JWCC’s disclosure reports do not reflect the payment of a deposit,
which presumably could have been applied toward the total bill.

As for the auto-calls and poll conducted by Javor, JWCC “does not dispute” that it
engaged Javor’s company, ReachFly, to perform auto calls in the days leading up to the primary.
JWCC Response at 2. It maintains that ReachFly “subsequently” issued an invoice to JWCC and
that its payment of the invoice would be reported in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. /d.

With respect tb paiting, JWCC says the allegation that it received a pol canducted by
Javor for ane of Walsh's opponents “sineply is not true.” JWCC Response at 3. It represeats that
it engaged ReachFly on January 26, 2010, ta conduct a limited poll to test name recognition and
geographic areas of strength and weakness to permit it to more effectively target its efforts in the
closing days of the primary campaign. /d. JWCC again maintains that ReachFly did not issue an
invoice for the poll during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting period but did so “subsequently”
and that it would report expenditures for these services in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. /d.

Bryan Javor states that it is JWCC’s responsibility to report any contributions he made to
it. He denies, however, that he gave poll results to another candidate. Christopher Geissler, the
Walsh primary opponent whose poll results were allegedly given to JWCC, states that he has no
knowledge of who provided services ta Walsh but is intorestett in how phone survey information
compiled by a consulting firm engaged by his campaign committee was furnishnd to an
opponent. |

After JWCC submitted its response, it amended its 2010 April Quarterly Report to reflect
a January 26, 2010, $550 in-kind contribution from Javor for “in-kind auto calls” and a

$1,081.27 debt owed to ReachFly for “tech assistance and phone calls.” It also disclosed three
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disbursements to ReachFly in the 2010 July Quarterly Report, all for “technology consulting™:
$1,334, $1,500 and $1,250 on May 1, May 21, and June 1, 2010, respectively.

JWCC appears to have reported the auto-calls and limited poll conducted by Javor and
ReachFly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly chbrt as an in-kind contribution and debt rather
than in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, presumably because the underlying services were
provided in the week leading up to the February 2, 2010, e period covered by the 2010 April
Quarterly Report. The three disbursenients to ReachFly disclased in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report appear to relate to services Javor provided at a later time since their pixrpose is listed as
“technology and consulting” rather than auto calls or phone calls.?

2.  Analysis

A political committee must report the identification of each person who makes a
contribution aggregating in excess of $200 per election cycle. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(3). The
payment by an individual from personal funds for costs incurred in obtaining goods and services
that are used by or on behalf of a political committee is a contribution unless specifically
exempted under the Act and Commission regulations. 11 C.F.R. § 116.5(b). Additionally, an
obligation arising from such a payment shall be reported as & debt antil it is reimbursed.

11 CF.R. § 116.5(c). Further, a political committee must report the amount and nature of
owtstanding debts and obligations it owes. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8). A debt et obligatian in excess
of $500 must be reported as of the date on which the debt or obligation is incurred. 11 C.F.R.

§ 104.11(b). A debt or obligation of $500 or less must be reported as of the time the payment is

made or not later than 60 days after the obligation is incurred, whichever comes first. /d. If the

2 Bruce Donnelly, who hired Javor to conduct auto calls after the primary, has stated that Javor was invited to join
the JWGCC campaign staff after complainaut resigned in May 2010, which supports this conclusion, See supra at
p8.
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exact amount of a debt or obligation is not known, the disclosure report shall state that the
amount reported is an estimate, Id.

Based on the available information, JWCC failed to timely report debts it owed to a law
firm. In December 2009, the law firm began representing J WCC with respect to the Liscio
lawsuit, which included an exchange of phone calls and correspondence and two court
appearances during the period covered by the 2010 April Quatterty Report. Complaint at 8.
Because the legal services provided to JWCC regarding Liscio’a lawsuit exceeded $500 as of
March 31, 2010, the end of the 2010 April Quarterly reporting period, JWCC shauld have
reported that debt in its original 2010 April Quarterly Report. In addition, Illinios Secretary of
State records show that JWCC was incorporated on February 22, 2010, indicating the firm's
work related to JWCC’s legal structure occurred during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting
period. Thus, the portion of the $3,131 debt to the firm JWCC reported in the 2010 July
Quarterly Report attributable to the firm's incorporation work should also have been reported in
the 2010 April Quarterly Report to the extent it exceeded $500. All told, JWCC failed to report
debts for legal services provided through March 31, 2010, of at least $2,183.50 but less than
$3,721. JWCC appears to have timely disclosed two additional law firm debts in its original
2010 July Quarterly Report; however it did not diselose a fourth law firm debt of $4,939 until it
amended that report on October 13, 2010.

With respect ta the other reporting issues, JWCC failed to disclose in its original 2010
April Quarterly Report an $854 advance from Walsh for the cost of a primary election night
party, a $550 in-kind contribution from Bryan Javor for auto-calls, and a $1,081.27 debt owed to

Javor's firm, ReachFly, for phone calls made on JWCC's behalf.
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Even though JWCC failed to disclose the transactions discussed above, the Commission
is exercising its prosecutorial discretion and dismissing the allegations that JWCC violated
2U.S.C. §434(b) and 11 CFR. §§ 104.11 and 116.5. See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831
(1985). The transactions complained of have now:been disclosed and were not reportable in an
election-sensitive report, and they involved relatively low dollar amounts.

Although not addressed in the complaint, an examination of JWCC's disclosure reports
shows that JWCC failed to timely file a Staternent of Qrganizatien. Joe Walsh filed a Statement
of Candidacy on Qotober 30, 2009, designating JWCC as his principal campaign committee. A
principal campaign committee must file a Statement of Organization no later than 10 days after
designation. 2 U.S.C. § 433(a). JWCC did not file a Statement of Organization until January 13,
2010. Because the late-filed Statement of Organization did not affect JWCC’s timely filing of its
initial disclosure report, the 2010 Pre-Primary Report, on January 22, 2010, and the Commission
is not pursuing JWCC for other violations, the Commission is exercising its prosecutorial
discretion and dismissing JWCC’s violation of 2 U.S.C. § 433(a). See Heckler v. Chaney at 831.

The Commission is also issuing a cautionary letter to JWCC because it violated
2 U.S.C. § 433(a) and effectively admits to violating 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) through its amendments.
In addition, even though JWCC hes new discloseti the transaations at issue, JWCC appears m
have disclosed them only in response to a complaint filed by a former staffer. As it appears that
part of the $3,132.75 debt to the law firm reported in the 2010 July Quasterly Report involved
work relating to JWCC’s incorporation and performed during the 2010 April Quarterly reporting
period, the Commission is also advising JWCC to review the law firm debt and amend its

disclosure reports accordingly.
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B. Automated Phone Calls Paid for by Bruce Donnelly

1. Background

The complaint also alleges that JWCC gave phone data to Bryan Javor to assist him in
conducting numerous automated phone calls paid for by Biiice Donnelly to increase Joe Walsh's
name recognition and help get out the vote for him, and JWCC failed to report the expenditures
for these calls as an in-kind contribution from Donnelly. The complaint does not provide a time
frame for thesc auto-calls, and none of the documents prowvided shed further light on this
allegatien. Accarding to Donnelly, theae phone calls were nade after the primary election.

Donnelly acknowledges that he used Bryan Javor's marketing services in March, April,
and May 2010 to make a limited number of local auto-calls, and that complainant, while
employed by JWCC, provided Javor with some of the phone data for the calls. Donnelly states
that the auto-calls were made to promote attendance at free, open meetings of a new local group
of independent voters that encourages voters to become better informed about issues. Some of
the calls mentioned that Walsh was among the invited speakers at the meetings, but Donnelly
maintains that the auto-calls did not solicit funds for Walsh or the group, and the meetings were
not fundraisers for Walsh. Donnelly believes that none of his personal spending with respect to
the auto-valls should be attributed to JWCC as an in-kind contributian as he independently
selected who to call based on his owm criteria for marketing the group, and JWCC exercised no
control over the content of the calls, the group’s meeting agenda, or his use of Javor, whose
services he used because it was one of the cheapest options to promote the group. Even if his
spending were deemed to be an in-kind contribution, Donnelly maintains the value would have
been within his contribution limit for the general election. JWCC’s reports confirm that

Donnelly had made only one $1,500 primary election contribution as of June 7, 2010.
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JWCC suggests that Mr. Donnelly’s activities did not constitute coordinated
communications, and thus an in-kind contribution, as Donnelly states that “he did not coordinate
the timing or content of the [auto-] calls” with the JWCC “or its agents,” and the purpose of the
calls was “not to advocate for Joe Walsh's election of Joe Walsh.;2 .JWCC Response at 2.
Nonetheless, JWCC states that it determined that the value of the phone data it supplied to Javor
was $70, and it will disclose this amount as an-kind contribation to Donnelly’s organization in
JWCC’s 2010 July Quarterly Report. Id. at 3.

Following submission of its response, JWCC reported an-kind contribution of $70 to
Bruce Donnelly in its amended 2010 April Quarterly Report rather than its 2010 July Quarterly
Report, presumably signifying that the phone data was provided to Javor before March 31, 2010.
In addition, in its 2010 July Quarterly Report, JWCC reported six in-kind general election
contributions, totaling $1,702, from Bruce Donnelly in May and June for in-kind automated
calls, in-kind meeting room rentals and in-kind printed materials.*

2. Analysis

The Act provides that a person may not make contributions that aggregate in excess of the

statutory limitation with respect to any election for Federal office. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(a)(1)(A). In

the 2010 election cycle, the individual contribution limit is $2,400. Expenditures made by any

3 Commission regulations provide that a communication is considered coordinated with a candidate, and thus, an
in-kind contribution to the candidate’s political committee, if it is paid for by a person other than a candidate and
meets certain content and conduct standards. See 11 C.E.R. § 109.21(a). A communication satisfies the content
standards if, for example, it is a public communication that expressly advocates the election or defeat of a clearly
identified candidate. See 11 CF.R. § 109.21(c)3). A communication satisfies the conduct standard if, for example,
a candidate or a political committee is materially involved in decisions regarding the content, intended audience, or
frequency or timing of the conmmunicatioh. See 11 C.F.R § 109.21(d)(2).

* Danonelly's in-kind contributions include: $265.80 and $304.40 in in-kind automated calls on May 2, 2010, and
June 9, 2010, respectively; $330 in in-kind meeting room rentals an each of May 4 and June 15, 2010; and $400 and
$72 in in-kind printed material on June 23 and 30, 2010, respectively.
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person in cooperation, consultation or concert with, or at the request or suggestion of a candidate
or a candidate’s political committee shall be considered a contribution. 2 U.S.C.

§ 441a(a)(7)(B)(i). The Act prohibits a political committee from accepting a contribution in

* excess of the Act’s limitations. 2 U.S.C. § 441a(f). Political committees must file periodic

reports that disclose contributions from persons other than political committees and the
identification of each person who makes contributions aggregating in excess ¢f $200 within an
election cycle. 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(b)(2)(A) and (3).

Although there appears to be tension between what Donnelly has stated about his
activities and JWCC'’s post-respanse actions, the Commission finds that there is no reason to
believe that any violation occurred with respect to Donnelly’s phone calls. Mr. Donnelly
indicates that he engaged Mr. Javor to conduct auto-calls to promote meetings featuring Walsh
after the primary election, and Donnelly's newly reported in-kind contributions—totaling
$1,702—were less than the $2,400 contribution limit for the general election. Thus, it does not
appear that JWCC accepted excessive contributions in connection with the general election. In
addition, because the in-kind contributions were apparently made in May and June 2010, they
were timely reported in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Therefore, the Commission finds no
reassn to believe that Joe Walsh for Congress Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 441a(f) or 2 U.S.C.
§ 434(b).

C. Alleged Excessive Contributions Made by Candidate’s Family
Through Others

1. Background

The complaint also alleges that Walsh received large contributions ia excess of the
$2,400 per-election contribution limit from family members that were funneled to the campaign

through multiple donors “‘and questionable bookkeeping by™ JWCC's treasurer, Helene Miller-
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Walsh, who is Walsh’s wife. Complaint at 1. The complainant does not appear to have personal
knowledge of the facts underlying his allegation since he couches it in terms of his belief.
Instead, he refers to an unnamed individual who can confirm the allegation but who is “reluctant
to release information of checks and routing information due to fear of prosecution.on his
behalf.” Id. The complainant states that he will immediately forward information to the
Commission if it becomes available. Jd. He has not done so.

JWCC charatterizes the allagation as “a vague and non-specific reference to other
violations” related to cantribution limits and states that it can “offer ne response to these
unsubstantiated allegations” without additional information. JWCC Response at 4.

2. Analysis

No person shall make a contribution in the name of another person or knowingly permit
his or her name to be used to make such a contribution. 2 U.S.C. § 441f. No person shall
knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another. /d.

The complainant does not appear to have personal knowledge that excessive
contributions from Walsh family members were funneled through others to the campaign, and he '
does not provide specific facts about the idénfity of the “nmultiple” contributors through whom
family contributions were allegedly funneled, the identity of the family'members allegedly
involved, or how questionable bookkeeping may have facilijated any such scheme. Nor does he
identify the individual whom he says can confirm the allegation, Under 11 C.F.R. § 111.4(d)(3),

a complaint should contain a clear and concise recitation of the facts that describe a violation of
the Act or Commission regulations. /d The complaint lacks sufficient specific facts, such as the
identities of any excessive family contributors or conduits, to establish a violation of section

441f. Moreover, the only identified source of information that could give rise to a belief in the
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rise to a belief in the truth of the allegations is a reference to unspecified checks and routing
numbers that appear to be accessible to an unidentified individual.

Accordingly, in the absence of any further information from the complainant with respect
to this allegation; the Commission has determined to find no reason to believe that Joe Walsh for

Congress Committee and Joe Walsh violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f.
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